
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 06/13/2023 
                                                             


 
Fiscal Impact:   None                               
 
File Number: 


 
R-105-2023 Date 06/27/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton last clarified the provisions of Ordinance Section 3.12 
Investment Policy with R-52-12 on April 24, 2012; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton ordinance relating to the investment policy was 
subsequently renumbered as Ordinance Section 2.586 Investment Policy; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Common Council repealed Ordinance Section 2.586 
Investment Policy on June 27, 2023 with O-xx-2023; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller has noticed that (a) the prior policy did 
not conform to certain sections of the Wisconsin statutes, certain sections of the policy have not 
been followed and (c) certain sections of the policy need to be expanded upon; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that the investment policy 


clarification as detailed with R-51-12 on April 24, 2022 be replaced with the attached investment 
policy; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer and Utilities Finance 


Manager have drafted the attached policy based upon the Best Practices of the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the policy has been reviewed by the City Attorney for 
conformity with the Wisconsin Statutes, and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the revised 


City of Stoughton Investment Policy to the City of Stoughton Common Council on May 15, 2023 
by a vote of 4-1; 


 
 
 
 







NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the investment policy adopted with R-
52-12 shall be replaced by the attached investment policy. 
 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 06/13/2023 
                                                             


 
Fiscal Impact:   None                               
 
File Number: 


 
R-105-2023 Date 06/27/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton last clarified the provisions of Ordinance Section 3.12 
Investment Policy with R-52-12 on April 24, 2012; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton ordinance relating to the investment policy was 
subsequently renumbered as Ordinance Section 2.586 Investment Policy; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Common Council repealed Ordinance Section 2.586 
Investment Policy on June 27, 2023 with O-xx-2023; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller has noticed that (a) the prior policy did 
not conform to certain sections of the Wisconsin statutes, certain sections of the policy have not 
been followed and (c) certain sections of the policy need to be expanded upon; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that the investment policy 


clarification as detailed with R-51-12 on April 24, 2022 be replaced with the attached investment 
policy; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer and Utilities Finance 


Manager have drafted the attached policy based upon the Best Practices of the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the policy has been reviewed by the City Attorney for 
conformity with the Wisconsin Statutes, and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the revised 


City of Stoughton Investment Policy to the City of Stoughton Common Council on May 15, 2023 
by a vote of 4-1; 


 
 
 
 







NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the investment policy adopted with R-
52-12 shall be replaced by the attached investment policy. 
 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







    
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383  
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383  


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886  


  


Date:   


  


May 16, 2023 


To:    David P. Ehlinger, CPA 


    


 


Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller 


From:   Brian R. Hoops   


 


 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director  


Subject: Items for a Future Stoughton Finance Committee Meeting Agenda  


The minutes from the May 15, 2023 meeting of the Stoughton Utilities Committee are enclosed.  Please 


include this item on the agenda of a future meeting of the Stoughton Finance Committee. 


Business: 


1. Revisions to the City of Stoughton Investment Policy  


 


Encl.  


cc:  David R. Erdman  


Chairman – Stoughton Utilities Committee  


Shannon M. Statz 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager 


 


Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


 Stoughton Utilities Director  







City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE STOUGTON CITY COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to amend the City of Stoughton Investment Policy


Committee Action: Finance Approved 3-0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R- 51 -2012 Date Introduced: April 24, 2012


WHEREAS, Ordinance Section 3.12 of the Stoughton Municipal Code outlines investment
standards and requirements of the City of Stoughton and provides certain authority and restrictions
related to the investment of City deposit funds, and


WHEREAS, the Common Council wishes to adopt a more comprehensive investment policy
related to the City’s investment goals and procedures and based upon sound public investment
principles.


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on March 27, 2012 and April 10, 2012 to consider
the changes to the investment policy and recommends approval of the amended investment policy,


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council
hereby adopts the attached investment policy which is intended to further clarify the provisions of
Ordinance Section 3.12.


That this Resolution was adopted by the Common Council for the City of Stoughton the 25th day
of July, 2000 and is amended this 24th day of April, 2012


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
April 10, 2012 – 6:00 p.m.
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room


Present:
Alderpersons Paul Lawrence, Carl Chenoweth and Tim Swadley.


Others Present:
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan, Deputy Treasurer Julie Roberts and Planning Director
Rodney Scheel.


Absent and Excused: Eric Hohol


Absent:


Call to order:
Finance Chair Lawrence called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Resolution R-51-12 Authorizing and Directing the Property City Official(s) to
Amend the City of Stoughton Investment Policy:
Finance Director Sullivan reviewed the changes made to the investment policy.
Chenoweth doesn’t like the idea of the Utilities finances being so separate. Chenoweth
also discussed oversight regarding Utility finances and requested this be a future
agenda item. Moved by Chenoweth, seconded by Swadley to recommend Council
approve Resolution R-51-12 authorizing and directing the property City official(s) to
amend the City of Stoughton Investment Policy as presented. Motion carried
unanimously.







R - 21 - 00


RESOLUTION ADOPTING CITY INVESTMENT POLICY


WHEREAS, Ordinance Section 3.12 of the Stoughton Municipal Code outlines
investment standards and requirements of the City of Stoughton and provides certain
authority and restrictions related to the investment of City deposit funds, and


WHEREAS, the Common Council wishes to adopt a more comprehensive investment
policy related to the City’s investment goals and procedures and based upon sound public
investment principles.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council
hereby adopts the attached investment policy which is intended to further clarify the
provisions of Ordinance Section 3.12.


That this Resolution was adopted by the Common Council for the City of Stoughton
this 25th day of July, 2000.


VOTE: APPROVED:


Ayes: 12
________________________________


Noes: 0 Robert E. Barnett, Jr., Mayor
Adopted: 7-25-00


ATTEST:


________________________________
Judy A. Kinning, City Clerk







RESOLUTION # R-21-00 New Resolution # is R-51-12
(A further clarification of Ordinance #3.12)


1.0 Policy


It is the policy of the City of Stoughton to invest public funds in a manner which will
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the
daily cash flow demands of the city and conforming to all state and local statutes and
any bond resolution restrictions governing the investment of public funds.


2.0 Scope


This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City. These funds are
accounted for in the City’s Annual Financial Reports, including those of the Stoughton
Electric, Water and Wastewater Utilities.


3.0 Prudence


Investments shall be made with judgement and care—under circumstances then
prevailing—which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering
the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived. The
standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person”
standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio.


4.0 Objective


The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities shall be:


4.1 Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the city shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure
the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.


4.2 Liquidity: The city investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable
the city to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably
anticipated.


4.3 Return on Investment: The city investment portfolio shall be designed with the
objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and
economic cycles, taking into account the city’s investment risk constraints and
the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.


5.0 Delegation of Authority


Management responsibility for the investment program is delegated to the City of
Stoughton Director of Finance and Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager,
who shall establish written procedures for the operation of the investment program







consistent with this investment policy. Such procedures shall include explicit
delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment transactions. No person
may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this
policy and the established procedures by the Director of Finance. The Director of
Finance and Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager shall be responsible for
all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the
activities of subordinate employees.


6.0 Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions


The Director of Finance will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide
banking and treasury management broker and investment services. No public
deposit shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by state
laws and as authorized by the city.


Every two years the City will request bids for banking services (for two-year terms)
from qualified local banks.


The Director of Finance and Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager are
empowered to purchase investments from any qualified financial institution to
maintain an investment portfolio that meets the objectives of this policy.


A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the City invests.
A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the City invests funds in excess of the
current FDIC limit.


7.0 Authorized & Suitable Investments


The City is empowered by Wisconsin State Statutes 66.04(2) & 25.50, to invest in the
following types of securities:


1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank savings bank, trust company or savings
and loan association.


2. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, VTAE district, village,
town, or school district of the state.


3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.


4. The local government investment pool and Wisconsin Investment Trust.


5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second
highest rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency.







6. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust,
subject to various conditions and investment options.


7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.


8.0 Collateralization


Collateralization will be required on all demand deposits as well as certificates of
deposit and repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and
provide a level of security for all funds, the collateralization level will be one hundred
two percent (102%) of market value of principal and accrued interest.


Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the City has a
current custodial agreement. A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping
receipt) must be supplied to the City and retained.


The right of collateral substitution is granted.


9.0 Diversification


The City will diversify its investment by security type and institution. With the
exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 50% of the
City’s total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a single
financial institution.


10.0 Maximum Maturities


To the extent possible, the City will attempt to match its investments with anticipated
cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City will not
directly invest in securities maturing more than 7 years from the date of purchase.


11.0 Internal Control


The Director of Finance shall establish an annual process of independent review by an
external auditor. This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with
policies and procedures.


12.0 Reporting


The Director of Finance is charged with the responsibility of including a report on cash
and investment activity and returns monthly to the city council.


13.0 Investment Policy Adoption







This City investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council. The
policy may be reviewed periodically and any modifications made thereto must be
approved by the city council.







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, May 15, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  3 


Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin 


Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, Dane County Registry:  


Stoughton Utilities staff discussed a customer request for a partial release of a platted public utility easement.  


Staff informed the committee that Stoughton Utilities does not have any existing utility infrastructure located in 


the easement and that there were no plans to utilize the easement in the future.  Staff noted that the Dane County 


Registration Document No. 5592538 included on the meeting notice was incorrect and should be Document No. 


5618013.  Staff also noted that following attorney review it was recommended that an illustration of the easement 


to be released should be included in the documentation prior to approval by the Common Council.  Discussion 


followed.   


Motion by Chenoweth, seconded by Hirsch, to authorize the partial release of a platted public utility easement 


on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, 


Dane County Registry, and recommend approval of the partial easement release following the addition of an 


illustration of the easement to be released to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 


5 to 0.   


Wastewater 2022 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the 2022 CMAR.  Staff informed the committee that annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form 


(eCMAR) is required to be completed no later than June 30.  Staff further informed the committee that there were 


no concerns noted in the CMAR.  Discussion followed.  


Motion by Payton, seconded by Jenson, to approve the 2022 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report and 


recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council at 


their May 23, 2023 meeting.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Revisions to the City of Stoughton Investment Policy:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a 


proposed policy that was drafted by City of Stoughton staff with input and review from Stoughton Utilities staff.  


Staff explained the proposed policy would replace procedures currently specified in the Stoughton code of 


ordinances and how the proposed policy would impact future new investments as well as the information that 


would be presented to the Utilities Committee at upcoming meetings.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Jenson, seconded by Payton, to approve the revised City of Stoughton Investment Policy and 


recommend approval to the Stoughton Finance Committee and Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 


4 to 1 with Chenoweth voting No. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that the annual 


water Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) will be presented at the June meeting.  Committee members 


requested that a comparison of Stoughton Utilities electric rates with the rates of neighboring investor-owned 


utilities be provided at an upcoming meeting, and that a tour of the wastewater treatment facility be offered prior 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:   
  


May 9, 2023 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Shannon M. Statz 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager  


Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  City of Stoughton Investment Policy Update  


Following a review of the current City of Stoughton Investment Policy by Director of Finance/Comptroller 


Ehlinger, it was determined that the current policy is not in compliance with sections of the Wisconsin 


State Statutes. In addition, some aspects of the policy are not being followed or do not provide enough 


information. Therefore, we are looking to adopt a new policy that addresses these weaknesses and sets 


forth new practices. 


Sections of the policy have been added or amended to comply with state statutes and procedures. Notable 


operational changes include: 


1. This updated policy creates an Investment Team, consisting of the Director of 


Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer, and Utilities Finance Manager.  The team will be responsible 


for the operation of all investment activities. To make financial investment decisions, there should 


be two of the three members in agreement. 


2. Quarterly, the Investment Team will provide the Finance Committee and Utilities Committee a 


summary report of the City’s/Utility’s investment portfolio holdings. 


3. The Director of Finance/Comptroller and Utilities Finance Manager are granted authority to add 


financial institutions as needed and will notify the Finance Committee within 30 days of said 


action. 


4. The City’s/Utility’s investment advisor will provide an annual report to the Finance Committee 


and Utilities Committee noting the period’s investment activity and recommendation(s) for 


improvement. Stoughton Utilities is not currently working actively with an investment advisor and 


has previously used an advisor as needed when considering new investments. We will most likely 


use the same advisor as City staff.  


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approved the revised City of 


Stoughton Investment Policy and recommend approval to the Stoughton Finance Committee and 


Stoughton Common Council.  It is planned to be presented to the Stoughton Finance Committee on June 


13, 2023 and to the Common Council for a first reading on June 27, 2023 







������������	�
� �������������������������������������


����������������������� �������������!�"����������������������� #�	


$%&'()*�+',,-*%.-,)/-*)'0
$%&'()*�+',,-*%.-,)/-*)'01*2(�3'*�4%.('0-,5�1*2(�67(*�87()0%((9


:







������������	�
� �������������������������������������


����������������������� �������������!�"����������������������� ��	







������������	�
� �������������������������������������


����������������������� �������������!�"����������������������� ��	







������������	�
� �������������������������������������


����������������������� �������������!�"����������������������� #�	
$%&'()%*�+(,-./,')%,0�1.%2,%�$%2*





		09 R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy

		09 R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy

		09a Fin 2b UC Transmittal to Finance

		09b Fin 2c R-51-12 Amend Investment Policy

		Investment Policy Res.pdf

		investment policy minutes.pdf

		Investment Policy backup.pdf

		INVESTMENT POLICY MARKED UP VERSION.pdf





		09c Fin 2c Utilities - Investment Policy

		09d Fin 2d Deposit Collateralization - Ehlers, Inc










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


City of Stoughton meal reimbursement indexed to US General Services Administration rates 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 06/13/2023 
                                                             


 
Fiscal Impact:   2023 daily maximum increased by $19 for in-state 
 
File Number: 


 
R-106-2023 Date 06/27/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin set the maximum permitted amounts for individual 
meals in-state, including tax, tip, and delivery fees at $8 for breakfast, $10 for lunch and $20 for 
dinner as of 07/01/2013; and, 


 WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin set the maximum permitted amounts for individual 
meals due to out-of-state travel, including tax, tip, and delivery fees at $10 for breakfast, $15 for 
lunch and $25 for dinner as of 07/01/2013; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Administration Travel Manual dated 
04/10/2020 references the Uniform Travel Schedule Amounts (UTSA), which indicates that the 
above rates from 2013 are still applicable; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton reimburses employees for meals at the rate of $8 for 
breakfast, $10 for lunch, and $20 for dinner since 07/01/2013 with no differentiation between in-
state and out-of-state travel; and, 


 WHEREAS, the US General Services Administration (GSA) publishes annual meal 
reimbursement rates broken down by individual states and further broken down between selected 
counties within each state; and, 


 WHEREAS, the GSA meal reimbursement rates are updated each year and available 
online; and 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends setting the 2023 in-state 
meal reimbursement rate using the GSA meal reimbursement rate for Dane County at $14 for 
breakfast, $16 for lunch and $29 for dinner; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends setting the 2023 out-of-
state meal reimbursement rate based upon the standard rate for that particular state unless the GSA 
meal reimbursement schedule separately lists the county where the dining occurred;  







 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the in-state meal reimbursement rate shall 
be set to the annual US General Service Administration (GSA) rate for Dane County which is $14 
for breakfast, $16 for lunch and $29 for dinner for calendar year 2023; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the out-of-state meal reimbursement rate shall be 
set to the annual GSA standard rate for that state unless the county is specifically cited within the 
GSA schedules for calendar year 2023; and 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton meal reimbursement rate shall 
be automatically indexed with the US General Service Administration (GSA) rates for both in-
state and out-of-state meals; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that meal reimbursement shall be considered a taxable 
benefit to the employee unless documentation of overnight travel is provided as per Internal 
Revenue Service rules; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that no meals will be reimbursed without receipts 
provided as per Internal Revenue Service rules for accountable plans; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the cost of alcoholic beverages shall not be 
reimbursed by the City of Stoughton; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that meals may not be paid for using a city provided 
purchasing card (P-card) but rather must be paid for directly by the employee to ensure that all 
Internal Revenue Service rules are complied with; and, 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that employees may not collect a daily meal allowance 
but rather must be reimbursed on an individual meal basis. 


Fiscal note:  https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       



https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates





�����������	���
� �����������������������������������


�����	���� ���


!"�#$#%�&'(�)*'+�,-.'/�01(�2*/314/*456789�:�;<=>?6<@789�A5:;BC�DE67F?GH<&(*+-(I�)'/.*4-.*14� J1K4.I� LMNOP1.-Q J14.*4'4.-QR('-S0-/.TR('-S0-/. UK43V )*44'( N43*W'4.-QOXY'4/'/ !*(/.�MU-/.)-I10P(-Z'Q��[\\86@G< ]̂@7_7̀ >6 abc ade adb afg ab ahhifbDEGGFj>68?�k�l7=><6 m7̂F69n7�kl7=><6 agh adh adg afc ab ahoipp57?>9G< q7<6 agh adh adg afc ab ahoipp5>8H7̂F66 5>8H7̂F66 agh adh adg afc ab ahoippr@7<?7E?�l7@6 [\\8>69�jGE7888G=7@>G<9H>@nĜ@9\6=>j>6?E7@69 abc ade adb afg ab ahhifbr@̂E_6G<�D7s qGGE ath adt ado aeh ab abbibpm>9=G<9><�q6889 uG8̂̀ v>7 abc ade adb afg ab ahhifb







��


� ���������	
���������	������
�������
���
�����	�	������	�����	������������������ ��!�!����"������#�	��	���$%&'()*++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++�,�$(-./0111111111++++++11+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++++++++++++++1�,�2(-*�3*45.6(5)+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1�,�7%).5*))�$&(/*))+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++++++�8�� 9:'-(0**++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1+++++11�8�� 9:'-(0**�;2�<%'*&=.)(&+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11++++++�8�� $&*'>0�?%@.A(&�B7CDE+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1+++++++11�F�� G(5H)A>A*�9:'-(0**++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1+++++++++11�F�I(J�?.@K�L&*>65M�>5�9N'*5)*�2*'(&A+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++++11�O�I(J�?.@K�?''&(=.5M�>5�9N'*5)*�2*'(&A+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++11�PQ�I(J�?.@K�R'@>65M�9N'*5)*�2*'(&A�?//(%565M�3>A*)++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++111++1�PP�I(J�?.@K�?@@.5M�S>N�$*5>-A0�T.5*)++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11P,��9N'*5)*�S0'*�2*U%.&*:*5A)�B)(&A*@�>-'V>J*6/>--0E++++++++1++++++++++++++++++++++++++++111�PF�� B?H7E�?SD�C**)��W���7%)X�<%''-.*)Y$%&/V>)*)++++++++1+++++++++++++++++1+++++++++++1+1�PF�� BLH;E�L>&**&�9@%/>6(5�Z�[\[]��W��;.&*@�D(=.5M�C**)̂L_̀a++1+++11++++++++++11++++++++++++11�PO�� B;HTE�;.&*@�D(=.5M�C**)�̂�L_̀a��W��T(@M.5M�b&>A%.6*)++++++++++++++++++++++++1++++++++�Pc�� BTHDE�T(@M.5M�.5�de��W��D*>-)�f%AH(gH<A>A*�G(�f=*&5.MVA+++11++++1++++++++++++++++++++11++1�Ph�� BDH$E�D*>-)�f%AH(gH<A>A*�f=*&5.MVA�H�D(=.5M�<6'*5@HS>N>J-*++1+++++++++++++++11++++++1++1�Pi�� B$H<E�$>&j.5M��W�<*-g�D(=.5M�C**)�̂L_̀a+++++++11++11+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1111�Pk�� B<HSE�<'*/.>-�D(@*�S&>5)'(&A>6(5��W��S&>.5�++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++111,Q��������BSHlE�S&>=*-�e5/.@*5A>-)�W��l*V./-*�2*5A>-++++++++++++++++++++1+++++++++++++++++++111�,P�?@@.6(5>-�2*)(%&/*)+++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11�,P�C&*U%*5A-0�?)j*@�m%*)6(5)++++++++++++++++11++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11�,P�


������	
��������"��
����"n��o����p��n�����	����p��n����������	��������������q�������������������������������������������������	����r���p
�p�����
	������ s��t���������
��	����p����	������	�n�p�������	��p�����
�����	��	����������������	���p����p�������







���


������	��
���� ���������������������������� ��	������������������������� ���������������	� �������� ��������!��"�����#�� �� �����$�%� &'(')�*+�,-./,0,�)-*'1�/2�3456�72+289/:;-0<''=�>-0<'1?-�-2@�&-AB/2'�C+02D'1E�� %� F-*'1�+(�5*-G� %� H+B-D+2�%� I0,J')�+(�I/K?*1�� %� L)/K/2-:�&'B'/M*�%� N(�B+2(')'2B'=�B+MG�+(�-K'2@-�%� O01DPB-D+2�(+)�'.AB''@/2K�,-./,0,�#�� �� �Q�"R	�����$� %� &'(')�*+�,-./,0,�)-*'1�/2�3456�� %� F-*'1�+(�5*-G� %� H+B-D+2�%� I0,J')�+(�I/K?*1� %� L)/K/2-:�&'B'/M*�%� N(�B+2(')'2B'=�B+MG�+(�-K'2@-�%� FL6�',M:+G''1�L0*8+(85*-*'�4)-S':�60A*?+)/T-D+2�%� O01DPB-D+2�(+)�'.AB''@/2K�,-./,0,�U���	�V�  ���%� WX�Y-*�)-*'�(+)�'-B?�J-KK'@�,'-:� %� >+)<�Z+0)1� %� H+B-D+2� %� I[6�U���	�V�  ���Q\���� "� %� WX�Y-*�)-*'�(+)�'-B?�J-KK'@�,'-:� %� >+)<�Z+0)1�%� Z+*':�2-,'�]�������-@@)'11� %� H+B-D+2� %� I[6�U���	�$�̂�"�"��_��Q\���� "�%� �̀�,/:'1�-;-G�()+,�Za�B/*G�%� 9'-:1�/2B0))'@�@0)/2K�J01/2'11�*)/M1� %� F'M-)*0)'�D,'�%� &'*0)2�D,'� %� H+B-D+2� %� I[6�U���	�$�̂�"�"��Q\���� "� %� �̀�,/:'1�-;-G�()+,�Za�B/*G�%� 9'-:1�/2B0))'@�@0)/2K�J01/2'11�*)/M1� %� F'M-)*0)'�D,'�%� &'*0)2�D,'�%� Z+*':�2-,'�]��������-@@)'11� %� H+B-D+2� %� I[6�U���	���$�"����������%� 9'-:1�/2B0))'@�@0)/2K�J01/2'11�*)/M1� %� F'M-)*0)'�D,'�%� &'*0)2�D,'� %� H+B-D+2� %� �Q���!������	�����b�L0*8+(85*-*'�60*?+)/T-D+2�(+),�U���	�Q�"̂�ĉ�"�"��_�����Q\���� "� %� �̀�,/:'1�-;-G�()+,�Za�B/*G�%� 9'-:1�/2B0))'@�@0)/2K�J01/2'11�*)/M1� %� F'M-)*0)'�D,'�%� &'*0)2�D,'� %� H+B-D+2� %� �Q���!������	�����b�L0*8+(85*-*'�60*?+)/T-D+2�(+),�


O+J�6/@b�C)'-D2K�-2�d.M'21'�&'M+)*�







F-1 


SECTION F - UNIFORM TRAVEL SCHEDULE AMOUNTS 
 
 


1.00 Definitions 
 


1.01 Airline Receipt 
1.02 Employee 
1.03 Headquarters 
1.04 Headquarters City 
1.05 Lowest Appropriate Airfare 
1.06 Non-Airline Receipt 
1.07 Ridesharing Services 
1.08 Traveler 
1.09 Travel Status 
1.10 Volunteer 


 
2.00 Authority for Travel 


 
2.01 Authorization 
2.02 Appropriateness 


 
3.00 Mode of Transportation 


 
3.01 Air Travel 
3.02 Travel By Train 
3.03 Travel By Bus 
3.04 Taxis, Ridesharing Services, and Airline Shuttles 
3.05 Vehicle Transportation 
3.06 Special Mode Transportation 


 
4.00 Meal Expenses 


 
4.01 Meal Claims 
4.02 Maximum Meal Amounts 
4.03 Meal Receipts 
4.04 Timeframes for Meal Reimbursement 
4.05 Alcoholic Beverages 
4.06 Bottled Water Reimbursement for International Travel 


 
5.00 Hotel and Motel Expenses 


 
5.01 Lodging Claims 
5.02 Maximum Lodging Rates 
5.03 Exceeding the Maximum Lodging Rate 
5.04 Checkout Times and Extended Stays 
5.05 Lodging Receipt Requirement 
5.06 Eligible Facilities 
5.07 Government Discounts 
5.08 Negotiated Rates 


 







Section F – 4.00 
 


F-13 


4.00 Meal Expenses 
 


4.01 Meal Claims 
 


The claim for meals must represent actual, reasonable and necessary expenses for meals, 
subject to the maximums provided in 4.02, below.  Meals included in the cost of lodging 
(e.g., a continental breakfast at a hotel) or registration fees (e.g., a lunch included in a 
conference) are not reimbursable if provided as part of lodging, conference, or registration 
fees.  The appointing authority or designee may grant individual exceptions if the 
employee provides written justification. 
 
 


4.02 Maximum Meal Amounts 
 


(1) Maximum permitted amounts for individual meals in state, including tax and tip (or 
other fees, such as delivery fees), are listed and shall be: 


 
As of July 1, 2013 


Breakfast  $8.00 


Lunch   $10.00 
Dinner   $20.00 


 
(2) Maximum permitted amounts for individual meals due to out-of-state travel, 


including tax and tip (or other fees, such as delivery fees), are listed and shall be: 
 


As of July 1, 2013 


Breakfast  $10.00 
Lunch   $15.00 


Dinner   $25.00 
 


(3)  The maximum allowable tip is 15% of the meal claim.  
 


(4)  On any particular day that an employee is entitled to reimbursement for two or more 
consecutive meals, the employee may exceed the maximum amount for one or more 
meals.  The employee may claim the actual amount spent for each meal as long as 
the total amount claimed for the eligible meals is not greater than the combined 
maximum reimbursement rate for those meals.  Each day is considered separately 
for application of this policy. 


 
(5)  Employees shall be reimbursed a flat rate of $4.00 for each bag meal.  


 
 
4.03 Meal Receipts 


 
Receipts for meals are not required except for the following: 
 







Section F – 4.03 
 


F-14 


(1) Any claim in excess of the schedule in 4.02 of this Section (Section F), must be 
accompanied by a receipt and full explanation of the reasonableness of such 
expense.  To be considered reasonable, a cost must generally be incurred outside the 
control of the individual.  If the employee has a choice in the selection of the 
restaurant or the menu item, the employee is expected to stay within the 
maximums.  When claiming reimbursement for meal expenses while attending a 
conference, employees shall be required to attach a copy of the conference brochure 
to the travel voucher. 


 
(2) If there is a suspected abuse or a consistent pattern of maximum meal 


reimbursement claims is noted on an employee's travel vouchers, the appointing 
authority or designee may require an employee to submit receipts to document the 
amounts claimed on future travel vouchers. 


 
 


4.04 Timeframes for Meal Reimbursement 
 


Reimbursement for meals for employees who are on a day-shift basis (7:45 a.m. - 4:30 
p.m.) will be allowed on trips only on the following conditions: 
 
(1) Breakfast, provided the employee leaves home before 6:00 a.m. 


 
(2) Lunch, provided the employee leaves his or her headquarters city before 10:30 a.m. 


and returns after 2:30 p.m. 
 


(3) Dinner, provided the employee leaves directly from work and returns home or to the 
headquarters city, whichever is earlier, after 7:00 p.m.  


 
The time or time periods specified above, shall be modified to the extent necessary to 
provide equitable treatment to employees whose work schedule requires shift work on 
other than a day shift basis (7:45 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.).  Meal reimbursement maximum limits 
shall be based on the type of meal appropriate to the time of day. 


 
 


4.05 Alcoholic Beverages 
 


The cost of alcoholic beverages is not reimbursable. 
 
 


4.06 Bottled Water Reimbursement for International Travel 
 
Reimbursement will be made for purchased bottled water.  Employees are limited to 
maximum reimbursement of $7.50 per day when in international travel status (outside the 
contiguous U.S.). 





		10 R-106-2023 Meal reimbursement indexed to US General Services Administration rates

		10a Fin 3a Meal reimbursement documentation 05-10-2023

		Meal reimbursement documentation 05-10-2023.pdf

		Travel Manual.pdf

		SECTION F - UNIFORM TRAVEL SCHEDULE AMOUNTS.pdf

		FY 2023 Per Diem Rates for Wisconsin.pdf



		17.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Repeal City of Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 06/13/2023 
                                                             


 
Fiscal Impact:   None 
 
File Number: 


 
R-107-2023 Date 06/27/23  


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton adopted the attached Interest on Donated Funds Policy 
on December 14, 1999; and, 


 WHEREAS, the policy has not been updated to reflect governmental accounting standards 
that the City implemented in calendar year 2011; and, 


 WHEREAS, the policy is unclear as to the interest rate and other methodology that should 
be used for calculating interest earnings; and, 


 WHEREAS, the policy regarding multi-year projects is only applicable to the Opera 
House as written; and, 


 WHEREAS, the current City practice is to allocate monthly interest earnings to each fund 
based upon the fund’s share of pooled cash and investments; and, 


 WHEREAS, unspent donation proceeds accounted for outside of the General Fund are 
automatically included in the calculations for interest earnings allocations; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the repeal of the City of 
Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy, 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council hereby repeals the 
City of Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy. 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







INTEREST ON DONATED FUNDS POLICY 
 


1. Donations are routinely expected to be expended for the purpose designated, within the 
current budget year. 


 
2. Individual donation activities are tracked for amount donated, versus amount spent. 
 


 The amount spent against the amounts received has to be computed in order to 
calculate “net donation balances” referred to in item #3. 


 
3. Net donation balances at year end, exceeding $5,000 but less than $10,000, will have an 


appropriate estimated earnings amount calculated and applied, with the resultant balance 
recorded as a "reserved" portion of City over-all Fund Balance. 


 
 The fund balance term “reserved” was eliminated with GASB Statement No. 54, 


which the City of Stoughton implemented in 2011. 
 Under GASB 54, net donation balances would qualify as restricted funds, but any 


related interest earnings would not be considered as restricted.  Interest earnings 
would be classified as “assigned.” 


 The language of “appropriate estimated earnings amount” is too vague.   
o What is the definition of appropriate?  The metric source for the interest 


rate needs to be defined. 
o In calculation the “net donation balances,” are expenditures based upon 


invoice date, general ledger date or the check issuance date? 
o Is the interest on net donation balances calculated daily, monthly, or 


simply upon the year-end balance? 
 The current practice is that all funds receive a share of interest income based 


upon their pro-rata share of pooled cash and investments.  Thus, for donations 
recorded in other funds besides the General Fund, those “net donation balances” 
are already included in interest calculations. 


 
4. Ongoing donation activities which have been approved for a multi-year project, (i.e., 


Opera House), and exceed $10,000 in net balance, will be tracked monthly and have 
interest earnings calculated and applied monthly based on the month's net activity. 


 
 The usage of i.e. (that is) means that this section would only apply to the multi-


year project for the Opera House.  The correct language would be e.g. (for 
example) if the intent was for all multi-year projects. 


 While this section is specific on monthly tracking, it does not define: 
o What metric source for the interest rate should be used 
o In calculation the “net donation balances,” are expenditures based upon 


invoice date, general ledger date or check issuance date? 
 What happens when these activities begin with balances over $10,000 but then 


fall into the $5,000 to $10,000 category?   
 The current practice is that all funds receive a share of interest income based 


upon their pro-rata share of pooled cash and investments.  Thus, for donations 
recorded in other funds besides the General Fund, those “net donation balances” 
are already included in interest calculations. 


 







5. Minor donation activities, less than $5,000 net, are expected to be expended and will not 
earn interest. 


 
APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL: December 14, 1999 
S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\INTEREST.docx 
S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\INTEREST.pdf 
LASERFICHE:\Stoughton\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\Interest 





		11 R-107-2023 Repeal Interest on Donated Funds Policy

		11a Fin 4a Interest on donated funds policy






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\12 R-108-2023 Amend 2023 Adopted Budget and Approving Agreement Heating, Ventilation and 
Air Conditioning System Evaluation and Design Services for the Library.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


Amend 2023 Adopted Budget and Approving Agreement Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning 
System Evaluation and Design Services for the Library 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 06/27/2023 
                                                                                TIME SENSITIVE ITEM         


Fiscal Impact: 
 
Expenditures increased $26,500  


File Number: 
 
R-108-2023 


 
Date Introduced: June 27, 2023 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 


WHEREAS, the 2023 adopted budget includes $10,000 for initial heating, ventilation and air 
conditioning (HVAC) system evaluation and the current 2024 CIP includes $120,000 for anticipated 
HVAC system replacements at the Library; and, 


 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from Strang, Inc. to evaluate the current system, 
design revisions/upgrades, prepare bidding documents, and provide services through construction for 
$36,500;  


 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 
approves entering into an agreement with Strang, Inc. for this scope of service; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2023 adopted budget be amended to increase 
expenditures by $26,500 as indicated on the table below: 


411-53200-49120  Note Proceeds   Revenue Increase   $26,500 
411-53200-50830-22057000 PSB Windows Replacement Expenditure Decrease ($10,000) 
411-53200-50840-23074000 Library HVAC Eng. Study Expenditure Increase   $36,500 
 
Fiscal note:  The budget amendment corrects a keypunch error in the adopted budget related to the 
engineering study.  Budget amendments require 2/3 vote of members elected (8). 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
 
            
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\12 R-108-2023 Amend 2023 Adopted Budget and Approving Agreement Heating, Ventilation and 
Air Conditioning System Evaluation and Design Services for the Library.docx 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  June 20, 2023 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Library HVAC System Design and Upgrade Project 
 
The 2023 Budget includes $10,000 for initial heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) 
system evaluation.  The current 2024 CIP includes $120,000 for anticipated HVAC system 
replacements.  Given we plan to make system improvements, we recommend entering into an 
agreement that goes beyond just evaluation of the current system.  We have received a proposal 
from Strang, Inc. to evaluate the current system, design revisions/upgrades, prepare bidding 
documents, and provide services through construction.  Their proposal is for this scope of work 
is $36,500.  This will allow us to get the design work underway and allow us to confirm the 
budget for the complete project. 
 
We recommend amending the 2023 Budget to $36,500 and entering into an agreement with 
Strang, Inc. for this scope of services. 
  
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance 6-20-23 - Library HVAC Design.docx 







 


 


 


W238N1610 Busse Road, Suite 102 
Waukesha, WI 53188 
 
811 East Washington Avenue, Suite 200 
Madison, WI 53703 
 


May 2, 2023 


  


Martin Briggs 


City of Stoughton 


Facilities Maintenance 


 


 


RE:  Stoughton Library Air Handling Units Upgrade  


  Engineering Proposal/Fees for Design Services 


 


Dear Martin, 


We are pleased to offer you design services for the referenced Air Handling Units Upgrade at the 


Stoughton Library. Strang will be evaluating and designing modifications to the packaged rooftop units as 


well as the replacement of the air handling unit located within the basement. Due to the location and 


configuration of the existing equipment, construction phasing will be required and will be included as part 


of the construction documentation. Based upon our review of the project description provided, we have 


included the following work as a basis for our proposal: 


• Engineering design for Mechanical, Electrical and HVAC controls.  


Design to include: 


o Evaluation of existing system components and operation. 


o Evaluation of owner provided pre-construction test and balance report for existing air 


distribution systems. 


o The new air handling equipment will be evaluated for and provided with UV and/or 


bipolar ionization systems. This equipment may be installed within the new air handling 


unit equipment or within the existing ductwork. 


o Evaluation of a humidification grid within the indoor air handling unit and within the 


existing ductwork served by the new packaged rooftop units.  


o Modification of existing air distribution system as required. 


o Evaluation and modification of electrical distribution system to accommodate equipment 


replacement.  


o Evaluation and integration of new equipment into existing Building Automation System. 


o Project specifications. 


o Construction documents for competitive bidding.  


o Preparation and exchange of plans with Owner and Consultants.  


o Develop addenda documentation if needed. 


o Assist with bid analysis and offer recommendations. 


o Review shop drawings. 


o Attend construction meetings as required. 


o Respond to contractor Requests for Information and prepare supplemental instructions 


as needed. 


o Conduct routine site visits to review work progress. 


 







 


 


MEMORANDUM DATE 


 


STOUGHTON LIBRARY AIR HANDLING UNITS UPGRADE FEE PROPOSAL 


 PAGE 2 OF 3 


The services will be done in accordance with the Standard Billing Rate Schedule of Strang Inc. A copy of 


the rate schedule will be provided upon request.  We agree to provide our services as outlined above for a 


flat fee of thirty-six thousand five hundred dollars ($36,500).   


 


Reimbursable expenses include printing, mail and delivery, fees for jurisdictional approvals and any other 


out of pocket costs approved in advance by the Client.  Reimbursables will be billed at 1.10 times the 


cost, detailed expense receipts shall accompany invoices.  Additional services will be approved in 


advance by the Client for all services extending beyond the scope above.  Strang Inc., the Consultant, will 


commence service on this project upon receipt of signed agreement. 


 


Excluded Services  


• Identification or treatment of hazardous materials. 


• LEED analysis and certification.  


• Acoustical analysis  


• Structural analysis and/or design 


• Domestic plumbing and fire protection analysis and/or design 


 


Reimbursable Expenses 


• Printing and distribution of Bid Sets 


• State/local code plan review fees 


• Mileage and travel 


 


 


Thank you for putting your trust in Strang. If you have any questions, feel free to contact our office at your 


convenience.    


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Sincerely, 


Strang, Inc. 


 


 


 


 


John E Kolodzinski 


Director of Mechanical Engineering / Regional Market Executive 







 


 


MEMORANDUM DATE 


 


STOUGHTON LIBRARY AIR HANDLING UNITS UPGRADE FEE PROPOSAL 


 PAGE 3 OF 3 


 


 


Accepted:  


 
Strang, Inc.                                                                                Client:  


Signature: ________________________                                 Signature:  _________________________  


 


Printed name:  ____________________                                  Printed Name:  ______________________ 


 


Date:  ___________________________                                  Date:  _____________________________ 


 


Title:  ___________________________                                   Title:  _____________________________   


 


  





		12 R-108-2023 Amend 2023 Adopted Budget and Approving Agreement Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning System Evaluation and Design Services for the Library

		WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from Strang, Inc. to evaluate the current system, design revisions/upgrades, prepare bidding documents, and provide services through construction for $36,500;

		NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approves entering into an agreement with Strang, Inc. for this scope of service; and,

		BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2023 adopted budget be amended to increase expenditures by $26,500 as indicated on the table below:

		411-53200-49120  Note Proceeds   Revenue Increase   $26,500

		411-53200-50830-22057000 PSB Windows Replacement Expenditure Decrease ($10,000)

		411-53200-50840-23074000 Library HVAC Eng. Study Expenditure Increase   $36,500

		Fiscal note:  The budget amendment corrects a keypunch error in the adopted budget related to the engineering study.  Budget amendments require 2/3 vote of members elected (8).



		12a Fin 5a Finance 6-20-23 - Library HVAC Design

		12b Fin 5b Stoughton Library Air Handling Units upgrade Fee Proposal






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2023 adopted budget for the Sustainability Committee 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 06/27/2023 
                                                      TIME SENSITIVE ITEM     


 
Fiscal Impact:   Expenditures increase $7,512 
 
File Number: 


 
R-109-2023 Date 6/27/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the 2023 adopted budget for the Sustainability Committee assumed the 
committee would be carrying forward a budgetary surplus of $5,600 from 2022 activities; and, 


 WHEREAS, the actual surplus for 2022 for the Sustainability Committee was $9,356 
which leaves an additional $3,756 that should be added to the 2023 budget;  


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the total expenditures for the adopted 
budget are increased by $7,512 as indicated in the chart below: 


Account Account
Number Description Increase Increase


Sustainability Committee
100-51105-49204 INTRAFUND TRANSFER IN 3,756$      
100-51105-50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 3,756$       
General Revenues
100-88888-49920 FUND BALANCE APPLIED - TRANSFERS 3,756$      
100-88888-50920 INTRAFUND TRANSFER OUT 3,756$       


Net totals 7,512$      7,512$       


ExpensesRevenues


 


Budget amendments require approval by eight (8) members elected [Wis Stat. §65.90(5)(ar)]. 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







2022 2022 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE
Budget Year 2022 ORIGINAL Amended   12/31/2022 MONTH 12/31/22 BALANCE
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM) INCR (DECR) NORM (ABNORM)


Dept 51105 - SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Account Type: Revenue
100-51105-48930 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue: 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00


Account Type: Expenditure
100-51105-50300 OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 304.00 0.00 (304.00)
100-51105-50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 0.00 5,900.00 140.50 0.00 5,759.50
100-51105-50316 RENT EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 200.00 (200.00) (200.00)
100-51105-50405 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00 4,100.00 0.00 0.00 4,100.00
Total Expenditure: 0.00 10,000.00 644.50 (200.00) 9,355.50


Net - Dept 51105 - SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 0.00 0.00 9,355.50 200.00 (9,355.50)


Budget Year 2023 2023 2023 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE
ORIGINAL Amended  06/30/2023 MONTH 06/30/23 BALANCE


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM) INCR (DECR) NORM (ABNORM)


Dept 51105 - SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Account Type: Revenue
100-51105-49204 INTRAFUND TRANSFER IN 0.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00
100-51105-49910 FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY 5,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue: 5,600.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00


Account Type: Expenditure
100-51105-50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,465.97 0.00 (1,465.97)
100-51105-50316 RENT EXPENSE 600.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00
100-51105-50405 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00
Total Expenditure: 5,600.00 5,600.00 2,465.97 0.00 3,134.03


Net - Dept 51105 - SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 0.00 0.00 3,134.03 0.00 (3,134.03)


Requested carryforward 9,356.00
Less current budget (5,600.00)
Additional carryforward request 3,756.00





		13 R-109-2023 Amend 2023 budget for Sustainability Committee

		13a Fin 6a Sustainability carryforward request 06-21-2023






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approving the mission statement of the Food Pantry Committee of the Stoughton City Council, Stoughton 
Area School District and the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 
 
Committee 


 


 
Food Pantry Committee approved 4-0 on June 14, 2023  


Fiscal Impact: $-0- 
 
File Number: 


 
R-110-2023 


 
Date 
I d d


 
June 27, 2013 


WHEREAS, the Food Pantry Committee of the Stoughton City Council, Stoughton Area School 
District, and the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce met on June 14, 2023; and  


WHEREAS, the Committee voted unanimously approve the mission statement; and 


WHEREAS, the mission statement reads as follows: “The City of Stoughton Food Pantry, since 
its founding in the 1990’s and through the work of its many volunteers, provides food to eligible 
individuals and families within the Stoughton School District.”, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) confirm mission statement of the Food Pantry Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Stoughton Area School District and the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce.  


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 







 
OLD MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Stoughton's Food Pantry Mission Statement and Policy is to assist those in need of 
food who reside in the Stoughton Area School District. 


  


The City of Stoughton Food Pantry follows state and federal guidelines on income levels to 
qualify for The Emergency Food Assistance Program (TEFAP) or commodities distribution. 


  


Emergency food is available even if a person or family is not eligible under these income 
guidelines. Emergency food is available from the City of Stoughton Food Pantry no more than 
four (4) times a year.  In addition, a referral will be made to other area agencies that may be 
able to provide further assistance.   


  


The Pantry's first priority is providing food. The second priority is providing personal care and 
hygiene items when they are available. 


  


The Mission Statement and Policy were approved by the Stoughton City Council on March 26, 
2002. 


 







 
PROPOSED MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Stoughton Food Pantry, since its founding in the 1990's and through the work of its many 
volunteers, provides food to eligible individuals and families within the Stoughton School District. 
 







DRAFT


Minutes of Stoughton Food Pantry June 2023 


1. Roll call, attending Diane Williams, Mike Heger, Sandy Fleming and Val Macho, Tammy Nimmo,
not in attendance Linda Lane


2. Meeting called to order 2:35 pm
3. Approval of Minutes from April 12, 2023- Motion to approve made by Val Macho, 2nd by Diane


Williams, passed 4-0 all in favor
4. Discussion on financials with no changes
5. Update to Website- Mike will send suggestions to Justin Packard for updating and maintaining


the Food Pantry website, this will enable announcements, deliveries, hours and any other
changes/updates needed in a timely manner.


6. Discussion on Mission Statement, the committee agreed to submit a proposal of change to the
City Council meeting on June 27, 2023.


7. Cab fare will remain, but will be available to any client regardless of age or disability.  Volunteers
should suggest using delivery service to any client wishing cab service.


8. Purchasing of additional food choice items with possible personal care items to be added, this is
tabled for the next meeting.


9. Updating the food pantry flooring and paint, volunteers will be helping with the needs of
painting, moving food, equipment and reassembling the pantry when completed.


10. Additional hours were discussed to add 30 minutes to the weekday shifts morning and
afternoon only, evening and Saturday shifts will remain the same


11. Meeting adjourned at 3:52 pm motion to adjourn made by Val Macho, 2nd by Sandy Fleming, all 
in favor.





		Approving Food Pantry Mission statement 2023

		FP mission statements

		OLD MISSION STATEMENT

		Proposed Mission Statement












 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-13-2023\20 3Y88925-Filling a Vacancy on the City Council.docx 
0608231533 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
To  City of Stoughton Common Council 
 
From  Matthew P. Dregne and Derek J. Punches 
 
Date  June 8, 2023   
 
Re  Filling a Vacancy in the Office of Alderperson  
 


This memorandum first outlines the options and procedure for filling a vacancy in 
the office of alderperson, as modified by 2019 Wisconsin Act 164. It then discusses the 
potential options for the City of Stoughton Common Council to address the vacancy that 
was created by the departure of Alderperson Frank Raff on May 23, 2023.  
 
Options for filling a vacancy.   
 


Under the statutes, an alderperson’s term of office is two years, although a different 
tenure for such officers may be provided by charter ordinance.1 A common council may 
fill a vacancy in the office of alderperson as follows:  


 
• By appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term. 


 
• By appointment until a special election is held, as ordered by the common council. 


Special elections must be ordered and held in compliance with Chapter 8 of the 
Wisconsin Statutes, as discussed below.2  
 
Alternatively, a common council may choose to leave a seat vacant until an election 


is held. Although not explicitly defined, it is our opinion that “election” for this purpose 
means either a special election called by the common council or the regularly scheduled 
election which coincides with the expiration of the term. Thus, the seat may remain vacant 
until filled by special election or for the remainder of the unexpired term. 3  
 
                                              
1 Wis. Stat. § 62.09(5)(b). In Stoughton, the term of office is three years. See Stoughton Municipal Code § 2-146. 
2 Wis. Stat. § 17.23(1)(am). 
3 Wis. Stat. § 17.23(1)(am). 
  







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-13- 2023\20 3Y88925-Filling a Vacancy on the City Council.docx 
0608231533 2 


Procedure for filling a vacancy by appointment.  
 


State law requires that appointments to fill a vacancy be made by “majority vote” 
but is otherwise silent regarding procedure. Therefore, the common council may fill a 
vacancy by a simple majority vote and may determine its own procedure for nominating 
candidates and selecting a person to fill a vacancy. However, a vacancy cannot be filled by 
secret ballot.4 The appointment is complete when the result of a sufficient vote is 
ascertained and announced. No resolution is necessary.5 


 
Procedure for filling a vacancy by special election. 
 
 Special elections are elections that are held to fill elected offices that become vacant 
during the term of office or to conduct a referendum.6 They may be held on the same date 
as the regularly scheduled elections (spring election or general election) or may be held on 
other dates, subject to the following requirements.  


 
A special election to fill a vacant city office may be held only by order of the 


common council.7 The order must be filed with the city clerk, who must then publish notice 
of the special election as required by statute.8 However, a special election may not be held 
between February 2 and the spring election or between August 2 and the general election, 
unless the special election is scheduled for the same date as the spring or general election, 
respectively.9  


 
In general, the date for a special election must be between 62 and 77 days from the 


date of the order.10 If a special election is to be held on the same date as the spring election, 
then the common council must issue its order between 92 and 49 days before the spring 
primary. The spring primary is scheduled for the third Tuesday in February.11 If a special 
election is to be held on the same date as the general election, then the common council 
must issue its order between 122 and 92 days before the partisan or special primary.12 The 
partisan primary is scheduled for the second Tuesday in August.13 


 
 


 


                                              
4 Wis. Stat. § 19.88(1).  
5 State ex rel. Burdick v. Tyrell, 158 Wis. 425, 433, 149 N.W. 280 (1914).  
6 Wis. Stat. § 5.05(19).  
7 Wis. Stat. § 8.50(1)(a). 
8 State law requires that a city clerk provide specific notices on several occasions preceding a special election. See 
Wis. Stat. §§ 8.50(1)(b) to (c) and 10.06 (3)(f).  
9 Wis. Stat. § 8.50.  
10 Wis. Stat. § 8.50(2)(a). 
11 Wis. Stat. § 5.01(22). 
12 Wis. Stat. § 8.50(2)(a). 
13 Wis. Stat. § 5.02(12s).  







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-13- 2023\20 3Y88925-Filling a Vacancy on the City Council.docx 
0608231533 3 


Options for filling the City of Stoughton Common Council vacancy. 


It is our understanding that a vacancy was created on the Common Council on May 
23, 2023, by the departure of Alderperson Raff, whose term of office was set to expire in 
April 2025. The Common Council may address the vacancy in the following ways:  


1. Appoint someone to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term. Under
this option, the appointee would serve until a successor is elected and qualified after
the regularly scheduled spring election in April 2025.


2. Appoint someone to fill the vacancy and order a special election. Under this option,
the appointee would serve until a successor is elected and qualified after a special
election. The successor would serve for the remainder of the unexpired term.


3. Leave the seat vacant and order a special election. Under this option, the person
elected would serve for the remainder of the unexpired term.


4. Leave the seat vacant. Under this option, the seat would be filled at the regularly
scheduled spring election in April 2025.


If the Common Council wishes to fill the seat by special election, then it must order
the special election in compliance with the timelines discussed above. Based on the 
statutory timelines, the Common Council could order a special election to be held on the 
same date as the spring election scheduled for April 2, 2024, or the general election 
scheduled for November 5, 2024. To do so, the Common Council would need to issue its 
order in accordance with those requirements set forth above.  


Alternatively, the Common Council could call for a special election that is not held 
concurrently with either election. As discussed above, such an election would need to be 
held between 62 and 77 days after the order was issued. Such an election could not be 
scheduled between February 2, 2024, and the spring election on April 2, 2024, nor could it 
be scheduled between August 2, 2024, and the general election on November 5, 2024.  







Name: Occupation:


Street Address: E-mail Address:


Home Phone #: Cell Phone #:


3) If there was an issue on the table that you agreed with but a majority of your constituents disagreed with, how


would you vote and why?


4) Council meetings are the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of each month.   In addition, there are at least two standing


committees you will be assigned to, as well as other meetings, correspondence and information needing your


attention.   Do you anticipate a problem in attending evening meetings or fulfilling other time commitments typical


to the Alderperson's role.


CITY OF STOUGHTON ALDERMANIC APPOINTMENT QUESTIONNAIRE 
District  1    - Vacant Seat


1) Tell us about your occupation, training and education.   Describe the characteristics, qualifications and


experiences you have that will enable you to do a good job as an Alderperson.


2) In your opinion, what issues are facing Stoughton today?  Please pick one of the issues and tell us how you


would lead a committee to probable solutions.







INTERVIEW QUESTIONS FOR ALDERMANIC DISTRICT #1 APPOINTMENT 


Name:____________________________________________________________________________ 


Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 


Phone #:____________________  Email Address:__________________________________________ 


(Please attach an additional sheet if more space is needed for your responses) 


 


1. Discuss your occupation, training, and education.  What characteristics, qualifications, and 
experiences do you have that support your candidacy and potential for contribution as an 
Alderperson? 
 
 
 
 
 
 


2. In your opinion, what are the most important current issues for the City of Stoughton?  Please 
discuss one of these issues in detail and describe how you would lead a committee to a solution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


3. If there was an issue on the table that you agreed with, but your constituents disagreed with, 
how would you vote and why? 
 
 
 
 
 
 


4. Council meetings are the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of the month and there are two standing 
committees you will be assigned to in addition to other meetings, correspondence, and 
information that will require your attention.  Do you anticipate a problem in attending evening 
meetings or fulfilling other time commitments of an alderperson? 





		20 3Y88925-Filling a Vacancy on the City Council

		20a Vacant Seat Application

		20b INTERVIEW QUESTIONS FOR ALDERMANIC DISTRICT APPOINTMENT






 


Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time: Tuesday, June 27, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom:      
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83868786018?pwd=MzJBR2wrWjdkclhWY1J6MXNqc2t6QT
09             
Meeting ID: 838 6878 6018 Passcode: 055110One tap mobile 
+13017158592,,83868786018#,,,,*055110# US (Washington DC)  
 
In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


          321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  
 
The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981 or on TDS 
Channel 12.  WSTO TV App is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and iOS. 
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, 
Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher, Rachel Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF THE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to 
attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@cityofstoughton.com 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
1.  Roll Call  
 
2.  Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
 
3.  Public Comment Period: 


• If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form and submit 
it by 6:30 p.m. on June 27, 2023. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com. 
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
 
 
5.  Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – June 13, 2023 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at 
the time and location given below. 


  



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83868786018?pwd=MzJBR2wrWjdkclhWY1J6MXNqc2t6QT09

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83868786018?pwd=MzJBR2wrWjdkclhWY1J6MXNqc2t6QT09

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@cityofstoughton.com

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





       B.   Committee Minutes and Reports: Finance (5/23/23); Food Pantry Committee (4/12/23); Plan    
 Commission (5/8/23); Public Works (5/18/23); RDA (5/10/23); Tree Commission (4/10/23) 
       C.  R-103-2023 Confirmation of the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Non-Standing    
 Boards, Committees and Commissions  
       D.   R-104-2023 Approving the Mayor's Citizen Appointments to Standing Committees 
   
OLD BUSINESS 


6. None 


NEW BUSINESS 


7. O-21-2023 Amend Section 70-176 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to parking prohibited at all 
times on the northside of West Wilson St. 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue (Public Safety Committee 
recommend approval 5-0 on May 24, 2023)                                                          FIRST READING 


8. O-22-2023 Repeal Section 2-583 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to the Investment Policy 
(Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on June 13, 2023)                  FIRST READING 


 9. R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy (Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 
on June 13, 2023) 


10. R-106-2023 City of Stoughton meal reimbursement indexed to US General Service Administration rates 
(Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on June 13, 2023) 


11. R-107-2023 Repeal City of Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy (Finance Committee recommended 
approval 7-0 on June 13, 2023) 


12. R-108-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for Library HVAC system evaluation (Finance Committee 
considering on June 27, 2023)       TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


13. R-109-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for Sustainability Committee (Finance Committee considering on 
June 27, 2023)         TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


14. R-110-2023 Approving Food Pantry Mission Statement (Food Pantry Committee recommended approval 4-
0 on June 14, 2023) 


15. Discussion and possible action regarding the aldermanic seat vacancy in District 1 due to the  
      resignation of Alder Rachel Venegas. 


ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83868786018?pwd=MzJBR2wrWjdkclhWY1J6MXNqc2t6QT09 
Meeting ID: 838 6878 6018 Passcode: 055110 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83868786018?pwd=MzJBR2wrWjdkclhWY1J6MXNqc2t6QT09





One tap mobile 
+13017158592,,83868786018#,,,,*055110# US (Washington DC)  
+13052241968,,83868786018#,,,,*055110# US 
Dial by your location 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
 
Meeting ID: 838 6878 6018 
Passcode: 055110 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/k8GAlxTPp 
 



https://us06web.zoom.us/u/k8GAlxTPp






 


Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time: Tuesday, June 13, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, 
Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Rachel Venegas, Daniel Payton, and Jonathan 
Schroerlucke 


 
CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Christen called the roll and noted 9 alders were present.  Alders Schroerlucke and Venegas were absent 
and excused.  Alder Raff has resigned. 
 
Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
Mayor Swadley noted the meeting had been properly posted noticed. 
 
Public Comment Period: 
None 
 
Communications and Presentations: 


• Ligocki – Juneteenth Celebration – Sunday, June 18, 1 to 4 p.m. at the Rotary Park 
• Taste of Stoughton – Saturday, June 17, 11 a.m. to 9 p.m. at Nordic Ridge Park 
• Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Planning Process – Wednesday, June 21, 6 p.m. at the Stoughton Fire 


Department Training Room, 401 E. Main St. 
• Stoughton Resettlement Community Picnic – Saturday, June 24, 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. at East Side Park 
• Catfish River Music Festival – June 30, July 1 & 2 at Rotary Park 
• Stoughton Jr. Fair – July 4 – 9, 400 Mandt Parkway 
• Stoughton K-9 Fundraiser Photo mini Session, July 16 at Viking Park 


 
Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – May 23, 2023 
       B.  R-89-2023 Liquor License renewals for the period of July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024 
       C.  R-90-2023 Outdoor Consumption Permits for the period of July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024 
       D.  R-91-2023 Sidewalk Café Permits for July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2023 
       E.  Committee Minutes and Reports:  Finance (05/09/23); Public Safety (4/26/23); Landmarks Committee      
       (4/13/23) 
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Majewski to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 9-0. 
   
OLD BUSINESS 







O-15-2023 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), Kettle 
Park West - Planned Development - General Development Plan.  


Motion by Caravello, second by Payton to approve O-15-2023 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the 
rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), Kettle Park West - Planned Development - General 
Development Plan.  Motion failed 1-8. (Heili in favor) 


O-16-2023 Magnolia Springs Rezoning  


Motion by Caravello, second by Schumacher to approve O-16-2023 Magnolia Springs Rezoning. 
Motion carried 9-0. 


 O-17-2023 Magnolia Springs Planned Development – General Development Plan.  


Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve O-17-2023 Magnolia Springs Planned Development 
– General Development Plan. Motion carried 9-0. 


O-18-2023 Amending Ordinance Chapter 70-135 (b), by creating subsection (c) Senior Center Parking 
Only, Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., stalls to be designated in the area on the north side 
of the Senior Center. 


Motion by Jenson, second by Ligocki to approve O-18-2023 Amending Ordinance Chapter 70-135 (b), 
by creating subsection (c) Senior Center Parking Only, Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., 
stalls to be designated in the area on the north side of the Senior Center.  Motion carried 9-0. 


O-19-2023 To amend Chapter 70-322 Decreasing State speed limits on certain streets to include: 
Racetrack Road.  


Motion by Jenson, second by Ligocki to approve O-19-2023 To amend Chapter 70-322 Decreasing State 
speed limits on certain streets to include: Racetrack Road. Motion carried 9-0. 


O-20-2023 Create Chapter 70-203 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; prohibiting overnight 
parking from 10:00 p.m. -6:00 a.m. and/or no motor truck, tractor, trailer, semitrailer or cabin trailer used 
in connection therewith and with an overall length of 17 feet or more.  


Motion by Jenson, second by Payton to approve O-20-2023 Create Chapter 70-203 of the City of 
Stoughton Municipal Code; prohibiting overnight parking from 10:00 p.m. -6:00 a.m. and/or no motor 
truck, tractor, trailer, semitrailer or cabin trailer used in connection therewith and with an overall length 
of 17 feet or more. Motion carried 9-0. 


NEW BUSINESS 


R-92-2023 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), Kettle 
Park West – Certified Survey Map.  







Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-92-2023 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the 
rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), Kettle Park West – Certified Survey Map. Director Scheel 
recommended R-92-2023 be tabled to allow the uniform zoning of the lot and to waive the fee if a new 
CSM request with revised zoning is submitted within 60 days of this meeting. Motion tabled with 
Scheel’s recommendation 9-0. 


R-93-2023 Agreement to undertake development (Magnolia Springs) 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-93-2023 Agreement to undertake development 
(Magnolia Springs).  Motion carried 9-0. 


R-94-2023 Agreement for subdivision improvements (Phase 1 and 1A – Magnolia Springs)  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-94-2023 Agreement for subdivision improvements 
(Phase 1 and 1A – Magnolia Springs). Motion carried 9-0. 


R-95-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for auto license plate recognition cameras. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-95-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for auto license 
plate recognition cameras. Motion carried 9-0. 


R-96-2023 Agreement to modify boundaries for Tax Increment District #6 – Business Park Expansion. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-96-2023 Agreement to modify boundaries for Tax 
Increment District #6 – Business Park Expansion. Motion carried 9-0. 


R-97-2023 Authorize contract with Ehlers for STI Holdings, Inc. Tax Increment Financing request review. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-97-2023 Authorize contract with Ehlers for STI 
Holdings, Inc. Tax Increment Financing request review. Motion carried 9-0. 


R-98-2023 Initiate remedial action steps for the former Dept of Public Works site.  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Payton to approve R-98-2023 Initiate remedial action steps for the former 
Dept of Public Works site. Motion carried 9-0. 


R-99-2023 A Class A Fermented Malt Beverage License for Neighborhood Liquor, Inc. Kuldeep Kaur, Agent 
for the premises located at 981 N. Page Street.  


Motion by Jenson, second by Payton to approve R-99-2023 A Class A Fermented Malt Beverage License for 
Neighborhood Liquor, Inc. Kuldeep Kaur, Agent for the premises located at 981 N. Page Street. Motion carried 
9-0. 


R-100-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class 
“B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association for 
Catfish River Music Festival.  
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Caravello to approve R-100-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city 
official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to 
the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association for Catfish River Music Festival. Motion carried 9-0. 
 







R-101-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for Opera House women’s restroom expansion.  
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Caravello to approve R-101-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for 
Opera House women’s restroom expansion.   Motion carried 9-0. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding the aldermanic seat vacancy in District 4 due to the  
resignation of Frank Raff. 
 
Attorney Manthe reviewed the legal options to fill the vacancy.  Alder Heili announced he would not be 
seeking re-election in District 4 in April 2024.  
Notice of vacancy to run in the Hub for 3 weeks with interviews to be at the end of July.  
Motion by Hirsch, second by Jenson to post the position in the Hub for 3 weeks and interview at 
the second meeting in July.  Motion carried 9-0. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Payton, second by Reeves to adjourn.  Motion carried 9-0. 8:46 p.m. 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


Candee Christen, City Clerk 
















Minutes of City of Stoughton Food Pantry Mee�ng – April 12, 2023 


1.  The mee�ng was called to order at 2:35pm 
2. Atendance – Linda Lane, Val Macho, Diane Williams, Mike Heger – note board member Sandy 


Fleming arrived at 3:00 
3. Approval of the minutes from the Feb 1, 2023 mee�ng – Linda moved to approve, Val seconded.  


All in favor 4-0.  Minutes were approved 
4. Requirements for patron renewal.  – deferred un�l discussion of the pantry handbook  
5. Discussion on the need for a new floor and pain�ng of the pantry.  The floor is old, cracking and 


difficult to maintain.   Mike will contact the city to verify there is no asbestos present.  Mike will 
get bids on vinyl flooring and installa�on.  Mike will review that info with the other board 
members and then decide how much of this will be done by volunteers.  Also, discussion on how 
long the project will take and whether the pantry could remain open during remodeling 


6. Friends group update.    We have been approved by the state of Wisconsin so the Friends of the 
Stoughton Food Pantry is a corpora�on.  We have acquired an EIN number.  We will now apply 
for 501c3 status.   Mike suggested we meet with Jeffery Bartzen, a new volunteer with legal 
experience applying for 501c3, and get his advice prior to applying.  Linda will work to arrange a 
mee�ng. 


7. Pantry Cleaning Log – Please whenever you clean a cooler, refrigerator, shelving etc., YOU MUST 
DOCUMENT THAT ON THE PANTRY CLEANING LOG AS REQUIRED BY TEFAP 


8. Dona�ons – Monetary dona�ons only require you to complete the dona�on form for cash 
dona�ons.  As usual monetary dona�on must be taken to city hall a�er your shi�.   Food 
dona�ons should only be recorded for dona�ons over 20 pounds and the donor wishes to 
receive an acknowledgement and thank you.    


9. TEFAP regula�ons require that you ask the client at renewal if he/she is receiving FoodShare and 
note that info on the computer. 


10. Pantry deliveries – a�er discussion with the Mike and Pate who do most of the deliveries, we 
would like to expand those eligible to include not just those with medical issues but also with 
any transporta�on issues.  The board agreed to expand transporta�on service.  At the same 
�me, we will be elimina�ng the cab fare provided to seniors for the return trip and encourage 
those to use the delivery service. 


11. CAC will do the annual inspec�on of the pantry at 3pm on Friday April 14.  Mike will meet with 
the representa�ve at the pantry. 


12. We are looking for a person to assist with spreading the word about the pantry and its services.  
This could include designing and distribu�ng brochures and/or working on upda�ng and revising 
our websites.  Let a board member know if you are interested.   


13. The handbook review subcommitee is working on many changes.  On relates to point 4 above.  
It was decided that for a patron renewing only the person picking up the food need to show the 
ID and POA.   Other family members are renewed by the person picking up the food verifying the 
name and date of birth of others in the family.   Previously all persons over 18 in the family need 
to show the id at renewal �me.  This brings our policy into line with TEFAP requirements.  This 
mo�on was moved by Linda and Seconded by Diane.  All members voted to make this change.  
By our next mee�ng the revised handbook should be available. 


14. Website review- our 2 websites, one maintained on the city pages and our own need some 
significant updates.  Mike will look into upda�ng these 







15. Providing extra “Pick 3” item to patrons who bring their own bags.  Discussion occurred and it 
was decided that we will encourage, via a newsleter, patrons to bring their own bags, but no 
incen�ve will be offered. 


16. Due to increased demand for evening hours, the pantry will have hours from 4-6pm on Tuesday 
as well as the exis�ng Thursday 4-6 hours.  This will begin on May 2nd 


17. E bags – the handbook commitee is working on changes to ebags but we will con�nue to offer 
them 


18. Volunteer Apprecia�on month is this April.  The board is extremely grateful for all of our 
volunteers who work shi�s, order and pick up food, do maintenance work etc.  We are therefore 
planning a social on Monday April 24 from 5-6 pm at the pantry.   More details will follow, 


19. Adjournment – the mee�ng was adjourned at 4:15 The mo�on to adjourn was made by Linda 
and seconded by Diane.  All in favor. 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\Minutes\03 Plan Com Minutes  050823.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, May 8, 2023 at 6:00 pm 
Hybrid Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Phil Caravello;  Tom 
Majewski; Tom Robinson and Al Farrow 
Members Absent: Dorann Bradford 
Staff:  Director of Planning and Development, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael 
Stacey 
Guests: Daniele Thompson; Conner Nett; Steve Tremlett; Rob Hostrawser; Teresa Lindfors; 
Doug Dolan; Melissa Olson; Karen Drogsvold; Fauna Justman; and Ryan Birschbach. 
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Roll call and verification of quorum.  Mayor Swadley verified a quorum is present. 


 
3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law.  Mayor Swadley certified 


compliance with open meetings law. 
 


4. Elect Vice-Chair.  Schumacher nominated Caravello as Vice-Chair.  Mayor Swadley 
requested additional nominations 3 times before closing the nominations.  There were no 
other nominations.   
 
The nomination was unanimously approved. 
 


5. Plan Commission meeting minutes of April 10 and April 11, 2023.   
Motion by Majewski to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 


6. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated the Common Council approved Resolutions 58, 59, 60 and Ordinances 5 and 
10 of 2023. 
 


7. Status of Current Developments.   
Scheel introduced the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials.   
 
Schumacher stated there is excitement building for the Popeye’s Chicken coming soon to 
Stoughton. 
 


8. 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 
15), Kettle Park West - Planned Development - General Development Plan. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/8/23 
Page 2 of 6 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\Minutes\03 Plan Com Minutes  050823.docx 


 


No one registered to speak. 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Scheel provided and explained a proposed amendment to the ordinance for parkland 
dedication and fees in lieu of dedication which gives the Common Council the ability to 
make a decision on dedication or fees later in the process. 
 
Majewski argued that the Common Council should review/approve the amendment first.  
Scheel stated this is a recommendation to Council. 
 
Majewski stated he is bothered by the continuous requests for exceptions using the Planned 
Development zoning. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated other communities are seeing the same requests, with developers 
seeking to cash flow projects. 
 
Farrow questioned what the fee in lieu of parkland is used for.  Scheel stated it has to be used 
to purchase parkland. 
 
Scheel explained the proposed parkland options. 
 
Schumacher would like to see parkland instead of a fee in lieu of and agrees with Majewski 
about the continuous exceptions being requested. 
 
Caravello agrees with both Majewski and Schumacher. 
 
Majewski would like to see more connectivity to parks and more planning instead of reacting 
to development requests. 
 
Farrow stated the City needs to be reasonable with any proposed exceptions. 
 
Scheel explained the proposed ordinance that is to go to the Common Council. 
 
Caravello is not a fan of one access at Cromwell Court.  Scheel stated there is one residential 
access at Cromwell Court and an additional emergency access from the Tru Hilton site. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated the applicant reduced the number of units, widened the access drive 
and added the emergency access from the south based on feedback. 
 
Farrow noted the traffic study indicates the proposed development will create less traffic.  
Scheel provided the report on the screen. 
 
Scheel noted, the details of the emergency access will need to be worked out during the SIP 
stage. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/8/23 
Page 3 of 6 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\Minutes\03 Plan Com Minutes  050823.docx 


 


Motion by Farrow to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance with the 
proposed revisions provided by Planning Director Scheel, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion 
carried 5 – 1 (Caravello voted no) 
 


9. 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 
15), Kettle Park West – Certified Survey Map. 
Scheel explained the request including a proposed amendment to the ordinance related to the 
proposed emergency access easement. 
 
Schumacher questioned who would have access to the gate.  Scheel stated this will need to be 
worked out but likely Fire Department personnel and Owners. 
 
Majewski questioned who would maintain the emergency access through the winter.  Scheel 
stated this will need to be determined. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approval with the amendment 
provided by Planning Director Scheel, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion carried 4 – 2 (Majewski and 
Caravello voted no) 
 


10. Communication Tower at 516 E. Main Street.  
Scheel explained the request and provided renderings of the stealth design at 110 feet tall. 
 
Doug Dolan and Melissa Olson were available for questions. 
 
Majewski questioned the affect the tower would have on redevelopment in that area of the 
community.  Scheel stated the tower should only affect the proposed tower location. 
 
Scheel provided the site plan showing the area planned for the tower which is adjacent to the 
RR corridor and about 500 feet off of E. Main Street. 
 
Caravello stated the Redevelopment Authority will be discussing redevelopment of areas of 
the Depot Hill District and is concerned about the timing of this request and he has concerns 
about potential environmental issues being close to the school. 
 
Scheel gave an overview of the history of the request and how the applicant worked with the 
Landmarks Commission to come up with a compromise.   
 
Scheel believes the applicant has demonstrated a need for the tower in this location and the 
tower can accommodate equipment for up to 4 for co-location. 
 
Schumacher questioned if there were federal regulations for setback from a RR.  Scheel 
stated he is unaware of any setback distance from the RR right-of-way. 
 
Caravello questioned the elevation difference compared to the school property.  Scheel 
estimated it to be 40 feet. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/8/23 
Page 4 of 6 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\Minutes\03 Plan Com Minutes  050823.docx 


 


 
Motion by Robinson to approve the communication tower as presented, 2nd by Farrow.   
Motion carried 4 – 2 (Majewski and Caravello voted no). 
 


11. Planned Development – Specific Implementation Plan for Stoughton Hospital, 
900 Ridge Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Farrow complimented the Stoughton Hospital team for their response and amendments to the 
site plan to address neighbor’s concerns. 
 
Motion by Caravello to approve the specific implementation plan as presented, 2nd by 
Majewski.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


12. Magnolia Springs Final Plat. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Farrow questioned the shape of the stormwater management ponds.  Scheel stated changes 
have been made to the ordinance related to stormwater basin design that will be used for 
future development.  Modest changes to the basin for this site have been made related to the 
shape at the normal water elevation. 
 
Motion by Farrow to recommend Common Council approval of the Final Plat as presented, 
2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


13. Magnolia Springs Rezoning. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Schumacher questioned the difference between a duplex and twin home.  Scheel stated a 
duplex has one owner and a twin home can be owned by two separate owners. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
Karen Drogsvold spoked in opposition of the playground and trail being in close proximity to 
her property. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Scheel stated the preliminary plat outlined the location of parks, trails, stormwater areas, and 
the exceptions being requested. 
 
There was a brief discussion about the location of the playground. 
 
Scheel stated the Parks and Recreation Committee decides where playgrounds are located 
and it is not part of the platting process. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/8/23 
Page 5 of 6 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\Minutes\03 Plan Com Minutes  050823.docx 


 


 
Caravello is on the Parks and Recreation Committee and will bring the playground up for 
further discussion. 
 
Majewski stated the City does master planning for parks and it is for the benefit of the 
community as a whole. 
 
Scheel explained the ordinance that will go to Council. 
 
Motion by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning ordinance as 
presented, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


14. Magnolia Springs Planned Development – General Development Plan. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the planned 
development – general development plan ordinance as presented, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


15. Urban Service Area Amendment – US 51 and County Highway B Development. 
Scheel explained the City’s USA amendment application. 
 
Scheel stated he expects the public hearing at CARPC in about 2 months. 
 
Caravello questioned the capacity for Stoughton Utilities to sustain this growth.  Scheel 
stated Stoughton Utilities comments were based on further expansion to the north and west. 
 
Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the urban service area 
amendment as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


16. Extra-Territorial Land Division at 3065 Sam Miles Road, Town of Dunkirk. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the land division as 
presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


17. Future agenda items. 
STI preliminary plat and rezoning in the next couple months. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/8/23 
Page 6 of 6 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\Minutes\03 Plan Com Minutes  050823.docx 


 


Majewski would like a review of the ordinance related to Planned Development requests and 
exceptions. 


18. Adjournment. 
Motion by Caravello to adjourn at 7:33 pm, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
Michael Stacey 







Public Works Committee  
Thursday, May 18th, 2023 
(Hybrid Meeting) 
 
Members Present: Tom Majewski, Kay Rashka, Lisa Reeves, Ben Heili and Rachel Venegas  


Absent/Excused: Mayor Swadley, Jeffrey Bartzen & Planning Director Rodney Scheel  


Staff:  Public Works Director Brett Hebert 
 
Guests:  
 
Call to Order:  Hebert called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM 


 


1) Communications:    


• Director Hebert stated next week, May 21 – 27th is Public Works Week and to thank the 
guys for all their hard work we will be having a cookout.   


• Director Hebert advised that tree planting has commenced; 30 trees were planted in 
Eggelson Park and 100 trees throughout the City.  


• Director Hebert stated that all the landscaping is in on the roundabouts with the exception 
that some of the grass planted is not coming in in the middle. He contacted DOT about this 
but staff is continuing to water.  


• Director Hebert provided an update on the current and upcoming construction that will take 
place in the City this year.  


 
2)    Approve March 16th, 2023 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Majewski to approve the 
minutes and seconded by Rashka. Motion carried 5-0.    


 


New Business:  


3) Elect Public Works Committee Chair: 
 
Motion by Reeves to nominate Majewski, seconded by Rashka. Motion carried 5-0 
  
4) Elect Public Works Committee Vice Chair: 
 
Motion by Reeves to nominate Rashka, seconded by Venegas. Motion carried 5-0 
 
5) Review the Public Works Department Org Chart: 
 
Director Hebert presented and talked through the Organization Chart; as well as what each 
individual positions entail. He also stated that some recent new positions have been filled and 
seasonal staff will be starting in June.  
 
6) Discussion and Possible Approval of the New Fleet Scoring Metrics:  
Director Hebert explained that the Fleet Department uses a software system for the City Fleet called 
RTA that was instituted in 2012. Within this system there is a scoring mechanism based on points 







rating each vehicle/piece of equipment based on age, mileage, hours, conditions, maintenance costs, 
etc. He then presented the list of vehicles/equipment to show the scores based on the data.  
 
Motion by Reeves to approve, seconded by Venegas. Motion carried 5-0 
  
7) Review bids from 2023 Crack Filling Program: 
 
Director Hebert stated they recently bid out for crack filling services throughout the City and 
received two back; Fahrner and Thunder Road LLC. The projected costs were $110,000 and 
Fahrner came in under that amount and would like to move forward with them.  
 
Motion by Venegas to approve, seconded Reeves. Motion carried 5-0  
 
8) Future Agenda Items: 
 
9) Adjourn: Motion by Venegas to adjourn, seconded by Reeves to adjourn the meeting at 
6:50pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted by Jen Wagner 5/19/2023 















Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, April 12th, 2023 @ 5:00 PM 
Hybrid Meeting - Stoughton, WI 
 
Members Present:  Mike Point, Kevin Short, Dean Tangeman, Aaron Mazzone & Jim Fitzgibbon 


Absent & Excused:  Fred Hundt 


Staff:    City Forester John Kemppainen  


Guest: Megan Blomel 


Call to order:  Tangeman called to order @ 5:02 PM  


 
• Communications:  
• Kemppainen stated a Oak Savanna will be plated at new park at 51 West. 


• Tangeman would like to change meeting time to 6:00pm. All were in favor and will be changed moving 
forward.  


 
• Approval of minutes from February 8th, 2023 Meeting:   


 
Motion by Short, seconded by Mazzone. Carried 6-0 
 


• Approval of minutes from March 8th, 2023 Meeting: 
 
Motion by Short, seconded by Point. Carried 6-0 


 
• February Forestry Reports:  Kemppainen stated:       


• He assisted with several snow events in March. 
• The Forestry Intern position was filled. 
• One city tree was removed in March at Heggestad Memorial Walk. Additional large tree removals still 


need to be completed within some parks but conditions have not been conducive to using equipment 
on turf covered areas.  


• Spring tree planting preparation began. Eighty trees have been purchased for street terrace planting, 
approximately half of which will be for new homes. Twenty trees have been ordered to place in the 
gravel bed nursery for planting later in the year as well.  


• Zero ordinance violation notices were issued in March. 
• Twenty terrace tree planting applications for new construction were submitted in March.  


 
 


 
• OLD BUSINESS: Canopy Cover  


 
Short attended and recently spoke to the Sustainability Committee on behalf of the Tree Commission in 
April and promoted the upcoming tree sale. Members seemed generally excited.   
 
Spring Tree Sale 
 
Kemppainen stated the tree sale is still on for April 29th for 9am to Noon. Pricing is $60/tree and it has 
been posted on social media.  
 
 
Arbor Day Celebration Visits: 
 







Megan Blomel joined for the discussion and visits will be in the morning at Kegonsa School and then Fox 
Prairie in the afternoon. 12 students from the Environmental Club will visit each school to talk to the 
students about trees and how to plant them.  
 
High School Arboretum: 
 
Tangeman spoke to the FFA Alumni about planting some new trees and they would be willing to fund 
these. The Tree Commission may work with students in the A.G. program to map and care for trees as 
well as tree ID markers.  
 
 
 


• NEW BUSINESS: Stoughton Notable Trees Initiative: 
 
Tangeman stated there is no update at this time. 
 


 
 Future Agenda Items: 
 
 Oak trimming ordinance for the City 
 
 
 
Motion by Short, seconded by Mazzone to adjourn the meeting at 5:57 p.m. Motion carried 4-0   
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 4/19/23, Jen Wagner -     Staff  





		01 Finance Committee minutes (signed) 05-23-2023

		02 Minutes of City of Stoughton Food Pantry Meeting April 12 2023

		03 Plan Com Minutes  050823

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, May 8, 2023 at 6:00 pm Hybrid Meeting



		04 PW Min May 18, 2023

		05 RDA meeting minutes (signed) 05-10-2023

		06 TC Min April 12, 2023






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Confirming the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Non-Standing Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions for the 2023-2024 Term, Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. 
 
Committee 


 


 
N/A  


Fiscal Impact: $-0- 
 
File Number: R-103-2023


 
Date 
I d d


June 27, 2023 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted aldermanic appointments for non-standing boards, 
committees, and commissions for the 2023-2024 term; and 


WHEREAS, the appointments are as follows: 


Ethics
Phil Caravello (District 1) 


Therefore, 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 
confirm the Mayor’s aldermanic appointments to non-standing boards, committees, and commissions. 


Therefore, 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that 
the proper city official(s) confirm the Mayor’s aldermanic appointments to non-
standing boards, committees, and commissions. 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 



cchristen

Cross-Out












RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Confirming the Mayor’s Citizen Appointments to Standing Committees for the 2023-2024 
Term, Pursuant to 2-67 of the Municipal Code. 
 
Committee 


 


 
N/A  


Fiscal Impact: $-0- 
 
File Number: R--2023


 
Date 
I d d


June 27, 2023 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted citizen appointments for standing committees for the 2023-2024 
Term; and  


WHEREAS, the appointments are as follows: 


Public Works 


Jordan Tilleson


Therefore, 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 
confirm the Mayor’s citizen appointments to standing committees.  


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:         Override Vote 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\07 O-21-2023 Pub 1 No Parking 70-176 Wilson.doc 1 
0623231134 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMOM COUNCIL 


Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 
1. No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose 
of ….. (91)  On the northside of West Wilson Street 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue 


 
 
 
Committee Action:    Public Safety approved 5-0 (May 24, 2023) 
Fiscal Impact:       0 
File Number: O-21-2023 Date Introduced: June 27, 2023 


July 11, 2023 
 
 
                


The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as 
follows: 
 Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 
No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of 
and while actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers 
and while the vehicle is attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in 
case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or 
parts of highways: 


(91)  On the northside of West Wilson Street 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue 


 


 
 
The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 
meeting on __________, 2023.  
 
Dates  
 
Council Adopted:  
 
Mayor Approved:  
Tim Swadley, Mayor  
Published:  
Attest: Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 















 





		07 O-21-2023 Pub 1 No Parking 70-176 Wilson

		07a Pub 1a Wilson Street Images






 
 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To repeal Section 2-583 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to the Investment Policy. 


Committee Action:    Utilities Committee recommended approval 4-1 on 05/15/2023 
Finance Committee recommend approval 7-0 on 06/13/2023   


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-22-2023 First Reading: 
Second Reading: 


June 27, 2023 
July 11, 2023 
 


RECITALS 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton codified the City’s Investment Policy under Ordinance 
Section 3.12 in calendar year 1986 and clarified the provision of this ordinance with R-00-21 on 
July 25, 2000; and. 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton amended Ordinance Section 3.12 with O-15-08 on 


06/10/2008; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton further clarified the provision of Ordinance Section 


3.12 with R-51-22 on April 24, 2012; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there have been no further changes to the ordinance or subsequent 


clarifications since 2012 other than the Ordinance Section number has been changed to 2.583; 
and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller has noticed that (a) the current policy 


does not conform to certain sections of the Wisconsin statutes, certain sections of the policy have 
not been followed and (c) certain sections of the policy need to be expanded upon; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller and City Attorney both agree that there 


is no requirement for the investment policy to be codified; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the complete rescission of 


Ordinance Section 2.583 – Investment Policy in order to create efficiencies for future revisions to 
the City’s Investment Policy; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer and Utilities Finance 


Manager have drafted an updated policy based upon the Best Practices of the Government Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA) and that the updated policy has been reviewed by the City Attorney 
for conformity with the Wisconsin Statutes, 


 
 
 







 
 


 


ORDINANCE 


NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, ordains as follows: 


 
1. Section 2-583 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances is hereby repealed. 


 
2. This ordinance will take effect immediately after publication or posting pursuant to law. 


 
 
 
The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 
meeting held on ___________. 


 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
       
Timothy Swadley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Candee Christen, City Clerk 


Posted:      
 
Published:   ____________ 
 
Attest: ____________________ 







�����������	
��� �������������������������������


� ���� !��" 	�	







R  -  21  -  00


RESOLUTION ADOPTING CITY INVESTMENT POLICY


WHEREAS, Ordinance Section 3.12 of the Stoughton Municipal Code outlines
investment standards and requirements of the City of Stoughton and provides certain
authority and restrictions related to the investment of City deposit funds, and


WHEREAS, the Common Council wishes to adopt a more comprehensive investment
policy related to the City’s investment goals and procedures and based upon sound public
investment principles.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council
hereby adopts the attached investment policy which is intended to further clarify the
provisions of Ordinance Section 3.12.


That this Resolution was adopted by the Common Council for the City of Stoughton
this 25th day of July, 2000.


VOTE: APPROVED:


Ayes: 12
________________________________


Noes:  0 Robert E. Barnett, Jr., Mayor
Adopted: 7-25-00


ATTEST:


________________________________
Judy A. Kinning, City Clerk







RESOLUTION # R-21-00
(A further clarification of Ordinance #3.12)


1.0 Policy


It is the policy of the City of Stoughton to invest public funds in a manner which will
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the
daily cash flow demands of the city and conforming to all state and local statutes and
any bond resolution restrictions governing the investment of public funds.


2.0 Scope


This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City.  These funds are
accounted for in the City’s Annual Financial Reports, including those of the Stoughton
Electric, Water and Wastewater Utilities.


3.0 Prudence


Investments shall be made with judgement and care—under circumstances then
prevailing—which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering
the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.  The
standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person”
standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio.


4.0 Objective


The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities shall be:


4.1 Safety:  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the city shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure
the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.


4.2 Liquidity:  The city investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable
the city to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably
anticipated.


4.3 Return on Investment: The city investment portfolio shall be designed with the
objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and
economic cycles, taking into account the city’s investment risk constraints and
the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.


5.0 Delegation of Authority


Management responsibility for the investment program is delegated to the City of
Stoughton Director of Finance, who shall establish written procedures for the operation
of the investment program consistent with this investment policy.  Such procedures







shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment
transactions.  No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided
under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Director of
Finance.  The Director of Finance shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken
and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate
employees.


6.0 Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions


The Director of Finance will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide
broker and investment services.  No public deposit shall be made except in a qualified
public depository as established by state laws and as authorized by the city.


Every two years the City will request bids for banking services (for two-year terms)
from qualified local banks.


A current audited financial statement is required to b e on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the City invests.


7.0 Authorized & Suitable Investments


The City is empowered by Wisconsin State Statutes 66.04(2) & 25.50, to invest in the
following types of securities:


1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank savings bank, trust company or savings
and loan association.


2. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, VTAE district, village,
town, or school district of the state.


3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.


4. The local government investment pool and Wisconsin Investment Trust.


5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second
highest rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency.


6. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust,
subject to various conditions and investment options.


7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.







8.0 Collateralization


Collateralization will be required on all demand deposits as well as certificates of
deposit and repurchase agreements.  In order to anticipate market changes and
provide a level of security for all funds, the collateralization level will be one hundred
two percent (102%) of market value of principal and accrued interest.


Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the City has a
current custodial agreement.  A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping
receipt) must be supplied to the City and retained.


The right of collateral substitution is granted.


9.0 Diversification


The City will diversify its investment by security type and institution.  With the
exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 50% of the
City’s total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a single
financial institution.


10.0 Maximum Maturities


To the extent possible, the City will attempt to match its investments with anticipated
cash flow requirements.  Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City will not
directly invest in securities maturing more than 7 years from the date of purchase.


11.0 Internal Control


The Director of Finance shall establish an annual process of independent review by an
external auditor.  This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with
policies and procedures.


12.0 Reporting


The Director of Finance is charged with the responsibility of including a report on cash
and investment activity and returns monthly to the city council.


13.0 Investment Policy Adoption


This City investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council.  The
policy may be reviewed periodically and any modifications made thereto must be
approved by the city council.





		08 O-22-2023 3XW1025-Ordinance Repealing Section 2-583 Investment Policy

		08a Fin 1a Stoughton, WI Code of Ordinances

		08b Fin 1b R-21-00 Resolution adopting city investment policy



